
Selection of Investor 1.27 MMTPA Urea Project at Gorakhpur, Uttar Pradesh 

 
Response/ Clarification on queries raised in Pre-Application Conference 

 

S. 
No. 

Query  Description Response/ Clarification  

1 Revenue Share % 
payable to FCIL 
for the term of 
Contract  

How much would be the revenue 
share % (approximate range)? 
 

% of Revenue Share shall be 
communicated to pre-qualified 
bidders in the Bid Stage. 

2 Transfer of 
existing assets 
(excluding land) 

We understood the land will be 
provided on lease for 33 years. 
What about transfer of assets 
like plant machinery, Buildings 
etc.?  Who will be the owners of 
these assets? Any consideration 
to be paid separately for these 
assets? 

Ownership of existing assets 
of FCIL (excluding land) on 
the earmarked land shall be 
transferred to the Selected 
Bidder. 
 
Bids for the Project will be 
sought on the basis of an 
Upfront Fee payable to FCIL 
against award of Project 
(including transfer of assets) 
 

3 Power of Attorney 
for signing of EoI 

Where the applicant is a single 
entity, would a Board resolution 
be suffice instead of power of 
attorney for authorization of 
signatory of the applicant? 

In case the Applicant is a 
single entity, certified true 
copy of Board Resolution 
clearly authorizing the 
signatory for execution of 
documents for the Project 
shall also suffice 

4 Formation of SPV 
for executing the 
Project  

Where applicant is a single 
entity, is it  necessary to form a 
SPV for execution of agreement 
and implementation of the 
project? 

A new SPV is required to be 
created by the Selected 
Bidder for execution of the 
Agreement and 
implementation of the Project.  

5 Land Area to be 
provided on lease 
for the Project  

Of the total land area 993.81 
acres available with FCIL, 
Gorakhpur, how much land will 
be made available for the 
project? 

Quantum of land to be made 
available for the Project shall 
be communicated to pre-
qualified bidders in the Bid 
Stage 

6 Site Visit  Could we visit the project site 
before EOI? 

A formal site visit along with 
relevant officials shall be 
organized for pre-qualified 
bidders post the release of 
RFP. However, if the 
interested applicants wish, 
they may visit the site before 
submission of EoI on their 
own.  
 



7 Applicability of 
NIP 2012 till 2019  

As mentioned in the RFQ, New 
Investment policy – 2012 
determines the sales price of 
urea for subsidy. As per 
amended NIP 2012, it is 
applicable for 5 years i.e. from 
2014 to 2019. Given the current 
timeline, it will be too tight to 
expect the project on 
commercial production by 2019. 
In case the project gets delayed 
beyond October 2019, due to 
factors beyond the control of 
project proponent, how will the 
pricing be decided for the urea 
produced from the new unit? 

The NIP 2012 as amended is 
applicable till 2019. Being a 
policy matter, applicability of 
the NIP 2012 beyond 2019 
cannot be commented at this 
stage.  

8 Policy support 
post 2027 i.e. after 
8 years from 
commissioning  

Supposing the plant gets 
commissioned by October 2019, 
it will get pricing support from 
Govt. for 8 years i.e. till 2027. 
What support in terms of Urea 
price will be given by Govt post 
2027? 
 
What will be policy norms on 
expiry of current NIP 2012 at the 
end of FY 2019? 

The support in terms of urea 
price beyond the period 
prescribed in the policy would 
be governed as per the policy 
prevailing at that point of time. 
 
This project would be covered 
under NIP-2012 norms. Being 
a policy matter, applicability of 
the NIP 2012 beyond 2019 
cannot be commented at this 
stage. 

9 Use of Coal gas 
instead of Natural 
Gas  

Coal to Urea production through 
Coal Gasification route is now 
largely employed in China as a 
strategic initiative to reduce its 
dependence on other countries. 
Would you support coal based 
urea production for the revival of 
FCIL Gorakhpur/ any upcoming 
Sick PSU Fertilizers? 

The Gorakhpur Project is 
proposed to be based on 
Natural Gas only. The 
Selected Bidder will also be 
required to execute a Gas 
Transportation Agreement 
with GAIL, draft of which shall 
be provided during the Bid 
Stage.  

10 Status of Daman 
NG Field of 
ONGC  

What’s the current status of 
Daman NG Field of ONGC?  
 
How do you ensure Natural Gas 
supply in case Daman Natural 
gas Field couldn’t supply the 
required gas by the time the 
plant gets commissioned? 
 
What mechanism is proposed to 
be provided to the investor for 
risk coverage/ contingency post 
declaration of CoD/project 
completion, in-case of non-

Status is enclosed as 
Annexure A. 
 
The project proponent would 
have to enter in GTA with 
GAIL. As per the guidelines 
on pooling of gas in Fertilizer 
(Urea) sector, notified by 
MoPNG, all grid connected 
Urea manufacturing plants 
shall be provided natural gas 
at a uniform pooled price by 
pooling domestic gas with 
imported RLNG for 



availability of feedstock gas? manufacturing Urea.  
 
After commissioning of 
Gorakhpur fertilizer plant and 
its connectivity with the gas 
grid, the same will also be 
covered under pooling 
mechanism and would be 
supplied gas at uniform 
delivered price irrespective of 
domestic gas allocation / 
supply for manufacturing 
Urea.   

11 Delay in proposed 
Gas Pipeline by 
GAIL  

How the project proponent be 
compensated, if the required 
pipeline is not in place by the 
time the plant gets 
commissioned? 
 
What is the current 
construction/development status 
of JHPL gas pipeline (including 
spur lines) linked to FCIL 
Gorakhpur? 

Empowered Committee has 
been set up to monitor and 
ensure synchronized 
completion of gas pipeline 
with fertilizer plant.  
 
Status is enclosed as 
Annexure B.  
 

12 Supply of Natural 
Gas post closure 
of Daman Gas 
Field  

What support would be provided 
for NG supply when the 
presently available Natural Gas 
from Daman Gas ceases its 
operation in 2028?  

The project proponent would 
have to enter in GTA with 
GAIL. As per the guidelines 
on pooling of gas in Fertilizer 
(Urea) sector, notified by 
MoPNG, all grid connected 
Urea manufacturing plants 
shall be provided natural gas 
at a uniform pooled price by 
pooling domestic gas with 
imported RLNG for 
manufacturing Urea.  The 
support for Natural Gas at any 
time would be governed by 
prevailing policy in the matter.  

13 Applicable Gas 
Pricing  

Will the feedstock be provided at 
APM Price? 

Pricing of Gas shall be 
applicable as per the 
prevailing policy. As per the 
current policy, gas to all Urea 
players is to be provided on a 
uniform pooled price. 

14 Tax Incentive  Any Tax incentives/Tax holiday 
support from Central Govt. for 
this project? 

No additional tax benefit from 
what are available for such 
projects(at both Central and 
State level) has been 
announced for this Project.  
 



15 Past liabilities and 
encumbrances, if 
any  

Will the selected bidder be 
transferred the asset free of all 
encumbrances and past 
liabilities? 

Peaceful possession of 
encumbrance free land (on 
lease basis) shall be provided 
to the Selected Bidder. All 
assets on the identified land 
shall also be transferred to the 
Selected Bidder. The transfer 
of land shall be in accordance 
with law and as per terms, if  
so required, agreed to by the 
State Government  
 
Any past liabilities on land and 
assets shall be on account of 
FCIL.  
 

16 Contents of Bid 
Pack 

Tentative list of documents that 
will be provided along with issue 
of RfP for due-diligence/ review 
by Lenders 
 

List of documents to be 
provided at the Bid Stage will 
include the following:  

• Request for Proposal  
• Draft Agreement / 

Contract for award of 
Project  

• Draft Lease Agreement  
• Draft Gas 

Transportation 
Agreement  

• Support documents for 
allocation of gas  

• Any other 
supplementary 
document, as 
applicable  

 
 








